900HH-9



Court of Appeals Cause No 69031-1-I

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

SHELLEY GOLLARD MIDKIFF, Respondent

٧.

STEVEN LINVEL MIDKIFF, Appellant

PETITION FOR REVIEW

Dan Evich
Post Office Box 1715
Edmonds WA 98020
WSBA 5615
425 712-8177 phone
425 712-0465 fax
evich23@ earthlink.net

A. Identity of Petitioner.

Steven Linvel Midkiff, Appellant 9 Heretofore referred to as Steven asks this court to accept review of the decision of the Court of Appeals in the case of Shelley Golard Midkiff, Respondent (hereinafter referred to as Shelley) and Steven Linvel Midkiff, Appellant, which was filed on January 21, 2014 and denying the Appellant's Motion for Reconsideration filed on February 18, 2014.

B. Court of Appeals Decision.

Appellant seeks review of the court's division of property and the law and facts upon which it is based.

A copy of the decision is in the Appendix at page A1 through A 7, a copy of the order denying petitioner's motion for reconsideration is in the appendix at page A-8.

C. Issues Presented for Review.

- 1. Is a party to a dissolution of marriage entitled to the award of additional funds from the spouse's separate property to compensate that spouse for the loss of value in an investment of his or her separate property?
- 2. Is a spouse who is the owner of a separate property interest in an asset entitled to benefit from the increase in value of that asset from contributions made during the marriage but not subject to the risk the of loss of value in the asset when it is awarded to her in a dissolution.
- 3. Did the court err in awarding the property of the parties at the value established at the time of purchase as opposed to the value at the time of the separation or trial?
- 4. Did the court err in ignoring the contributions to the investment of the wife by the husband during the entirety of the marriage, subsequent to the separation and ordered to be paid prior to sale but after the entry of the decree in determining a fair and equitable division of the property of the parties?

- 5. Are the contributions of as much as \$276,200 by the Appellant Steven and the contributions of as little as \$47,800.00 by the Respondent a fair and equitable award of property or does the award constitute an abuse of discretion by the trial court?
- 6. Did the court err in ignoring the characterization of assets as separate or community and by ignoring the case law and statutes as to how they should be divided allow an inequitable and, unjust award and thereby abuse its discretion?

D. Statement of the Case.

Steven and Shelley Midkiff were married in June of 2008. The parties separated in March of 2011 and Shelley filed for dissolution of their marriage. Shortly after their marriage Shelley sold her home and the parties purchased a larger home. Shelley used \$195,000.00 from the sale of her home as a down payment for the new purchase. RP at 25 l. 1-9. Steven pledged his credit and income in order to qualify for the mortgage along with Shelley's credit, income and down payment. RP at 27, l. 7-9.

From the time the home was purchased until it was sold Steven made all of the mortgage payments. Those payments were made from June, 2008 to March, 2011, when the parties separated, and from March, 2011 to April, of 2012 when the decree of dissolution was entered. Steven was ordered to continue making payments on the mortgage as per the decree until the home was sold. The home was sold in September of 2012. RP at 45, I. 9-25 and RP at 47, I. 1-6, and I. 10-20. CP 21 and 22.

The home was purchased for \$650,000.00. At the time of trial the market value was \$560,000.00. RP at 26, I. 7-8 and RP at 64, I. 6-7. The home had therefore lost \$90,000.00 in value.

The parties agreed that the home should be sold and that Shelley should be awarded any and all equity realized from the sale. The court awarded the home to Shelley and ordered it immediately placed on the market for sale. Steven was ordered to continue making payments on the home and to cooperate in the sale. Shelley would receive the net equity from the sale of the home. CP 22. The proceeds were set at \$66,000.00 at the time of trial.

In addition Steven was ordered to pay \$81,200.00 to Shelley to reimburse her for the loss in value of her separate property investment and to equitably share in the parties loss in their joint investment property. The \$81,200 was to be paid from the separate property of Steven a home he was purchasing in Bothell CP 22

The appellate court found:

The parties apparently agreed to the characterization and allocation of all assets and liabilities. Steven conceded that Shelley should receive all of the proceeds from the sale of the parties' home. The only point of disagreement was whether Shelley should receive additional funds to compensate her for her investment of **separate** funds in the family home."

(Emphasis added.) <u>In re Marriage of Midkiff</u>, No.69031-1-I, slip. op. at 2 (Jan. 21, 2014).

The court also found:

The trial court's disposition of property reflects its intent to ensure that the parties equitably shared in the loss on their **joint** investment.

(Emphasis added.) Midkiff, slip op. at 6.

Steven remained in the home as ordered and made all payments thereon until it was sold in September, 2012. Allocation of all other assets and liabilities were awarded as per the agreement of the parties.

E. Argument Why Review Should Be Accepted.

This petition for review should be accepted as it deals with an issue which has not been addressed by the courts but only in a manner that deals with the valuation and award of an appreciating asset as opposed to an asset that decreases in value. In short, what some have characterized as the award of a negative equity. In that sense the issue is in conflict with numerous cases of the Court of Appeals and Supreme Court which provide for the award of an asset which has increased in value during marriage but not for assets that have decreased in value. These cases deal with the contribution of community funds to separate assets, separate funds to separate assets, separate funds to community assets and community funds to community assets. But all of them speak to assets which have increased in value as opposed to dealing with assets which have decreased in value. In re Marriage of Miracle, 101 Wn. 2d 137, 675 P.2d 1229 (1984); In re Marriage of Pearson-Maines 70 Wn. App. 860, 855 P.2d 1210 (1993); In re Marriage of Skarbeck 100 Wn. App. 444, 997 P.2d.950 (2000); In re Marriage of Dittmar 42 Wn. App 380 771 P.2d 1087; In re Marriage of Greene, 97 Wn. App.708, 986 P.2d 144.(1999)

One case, <u>Lucker v. Lucker</u>, 71 Wn 2d 165 (1967), deals with the value of a decreasing asset but only in that the court is dealing with a value at the time of separation or trial and not at the time of acquisition. For all intents and purposes

this case has awarded property at the value it had at the time of acquisition and has ordered Steven to reimburse Shelley for the decrease in value over the period of their marriage their separation and to even after the decree.

By presumption it would seem that all property separate or community will be evaluated and awarded at the time of the dissolution or separation. The case law deals with contributions and characterization and increases in value during and after the marriage and not at the time of acquisition. In re Marriage of Skarbeck, 100 Wn. App. 444, 997 P.2d.950 (2000); In re Marriage of Pearson—Maines, 70 Wn. App. 860, 855 P.2d 1210 (1993); Estate of Hickman, 41 Wn. 2d 519, 250 P.2d 524(1952)

In the case at bar the court has held that on the basis of fairness and equity and the use of the courts discretion all of the cases setting out the rules for characterization, establishment of value and the basis for awards of those valued assets should be ignored, even though the statutes and case law all are promulgated to provide for a fair and equitable division of property after dissolution of marriage and even though the cases seem to deal with only increases but should also apply to decreases in value.

The decision of the trial court and the Court of Appeals simply makes one spouse the insurer of losses against the separate investment of the other spouse. This simply doesn't happen under any other circumstances. Had the same scenario played out with any investment determined by tracing to be the separate investment of Shelley with Steven contributing both community and

separate funds to that investment would Steven have been obligated to reimburse Shelley for a depreciating investment?

Had Shelley invested in a luxury automobile, mobile home, yacht or had she invested in a mutual fund, the stock market or a vacation home which decreased in value would Steven be obligated to reimburse her or insure her against losses. If so would he be required to expend the sums he has paid and been ordered to pay based on fairness and equity? Is such an award within the discretion of the trial court? Or would the award simply be made at the value of the asset at the time of the dissolution. The inequity of the above scenarios is exacerbated by the fact that Steven has contributed to the purchase of the asset in question. The court erred in awarding the home to Shelley making that award based on the equity which existed at the time of the marriage as opposed to the value of the property at the time of trial. In re Marriage of Chumbley,150 Wn. 2d. 1,74 P.3d 129 (2003).

In the case at bar, Shelley contributed \$195,000.00 from the sale of her separate property, a home owned prior to marriage, towards the purchase of a home with Steven after their marriage. In one portion of the ruling the trial court considered the \$195,000.00 was a separate property contribution, and in another indicated the home was intended to ensure an equitably shares loss on their joint investment. Midkiff, slip. op. at pp. 2 & 6.

It is established law that contributions by a spouse from community funds to the separate property of the other spouse are shared in the proportion the appreciation in the value of the asset has to the separate asset and not the actual amount of the contributions themselves. When community payments are made they may establish an equitable marital lien. <u>In re Pierson v. Maines</u>, 70 Wn. App. 860, 855 P.2d 1210 (1993); <u>In re Marriage of Elam</u>, 97 Wn.2d 811, 650 P.2d 213 (1982)

The court may however set off the right of reimbursement against the benefit the spouse may have in living rent free. In re Marriage of Miracle, 101 Wn.2d 137 (1984). In the case at bar, instead of the asset increasing and the possibility, however small, that Steven could recoup some of his investment the asset decreased in value. Not only is Steven precluded from profiting from his contributions but he is also obligated to subsidize and reimburse Shelley for the decrease in value of her separate property investment. Pearson v. Maines, supra, indicates that only the increase in value should be considered as one spouse "could pay or improve the other spouse completely out of the separate property interest."

The ability to invest one, "out of one's interest" cited above is exactly what has happened in this case, but in reverse. Shelley has invested funds from which Steven can gain nothing. The ruling in this case however insures Shelley that she will also lose nothing, or at least much less than what she would lose from her separate investment. The reduction of any loss sits squarely on the shoulders of Steven, with no risk due to anything Shelley may do or any misfortune which may befall the investment.

Though Shelley has invested \$195,000 of her separate funds in the home be it either a separate investment or a joint investment, the loss in the value of

that asset was \$90,000 as the purchase price of the home was \$650,000 and the value at time of trial was \$560,000. Midkiff, slip op. at 2.

During the time of the marriage from June 2008 to March 2011 Steven paid \$3,100 per month or \$96,100. This was presumably a community contribution to a separate asset as it was made during marriage. From March 2011 to April 2012, the period of separation to the date of the decree, Steven made the same monthly payments which totaled \$43,400.00. These were contributions from his separate property as they were made after separation. From May 2012 to September 2012, the date of the decree until the home was sold, Steven was ordered to make the monthly payments until the home sold. Those payments totaled \$15,500 and again were separate property contributions. Actual payments made by Steven totaled \$155,000. \$58,900 came from his own separate funds.

Steven did not contest and in fact offered the award of the entire proceeds from the sale of the house to Shelley. Despite his stipulation and despite his contributions the trial court and Court of Appeals felt it was fair, equitable, and within their discretion to award Shelley not only the entire proceeds of the sale of the home at a figure of \$66,000 but also the sum of \$81,200 to be paid from the value of Steven's separate property, his Bothell home. The Court of Appeals found, "Steven provided no specific evidence as to the value of the home in 2008 when the parties married." Midkiff, slip op. at 3. The court however, determined that he had an equity value in his home of \$240,000 at time of trial. The trial court took it upon itself to completely ignore Steven's testimony of the fact that

the value of his Bothell home was in the high \$300,000 at the time of the marriage and the value of his separate property had declined as had Shelley's. Using Steven's testimony, which was all that the court had before it as no appraisal was done and no contradictory testimony was presented, it completely ignored the loss of between \$40,000 and \$60,000 in the value of Steven's much less valuable separate property in awarding the \$81,200 from that asset to Shelley. This devaluation occurred at the same time Shelley's home was losing value.

The award in the decree is based on what the court determined to be "[i]n equity and fairness" and therefore within the court's discretion to "split the equity in the remaining properties." CP 22 at 3.

The trial court has chosen to award assets on the basis of its own discretion as to what is a fair and equitable division and award of property. The court has chosen to ignore the statutes and case law promulgated to insure a fair and equitable division of property.

In ignoring the characterization of property as community or separate the courts have allowed Shelly to unduly benefit from contributions to a separate asset which decreased in value by awarding her sums to cover her separate losses. The contributions come from not only community contributions of Steven but also from separate property contributions to save Shelly's equity but also from depreciating separate assets of Steven. Justification is that it is fair and equitable and discretionary by the court. The appellate court has the ability to

overturn an unjustifiable disproportionate award. <u>In re the Marriage of Tower</u>, 55 Wn. App. 697,780 P.2d 863 (1989).

The actual sums which Steven has contributed or been deprived of, if the decision stands, are as follows: \$155,000 in actual payments on the mortgage for the home from both separate and community funds; \$81,200 from his separate asset, his home in Bothell. The court has not considered the loss in value of his separate asset of between \$40,000 and \$60,000. Using the lowest figure of \$40,000 of loss on his home, his total contributions have been \$276,200 during and after the marriage. Even assuming that one-half of the \$96,000 paid on the mortgage or \$48,000 was community funds he has still contributed \$228,200 to a depreciating separate asset of his wife.

Shelley has contributed \$195,000 as an initial down payment on her separate property. From that initial down payment she was awarded \$66,000 from the sale of the depreciating asset and an award of \$81,200.00 from Steven's separate property. Those awards lowered her contribution to \$47,800. Even adding \$48,000 of community mortgage payments her contributions are only \$95,800.00. The home lost \$90,000 in value. This is a disproportionate division of property which is unjustifiable. In re the Marriage of Tower, 55 Wn. App. 697,780 P.2d 863 (1989).

Since the mortgage was incurred as a community debt but the asset was a separate asset of Shelley, Steven was forced into a position where he could discontinue contributions to the depreciating asset by way of mortgage payments and force Shelley to make the payments to protect her Investment. They both

Steven to continue his payments and attempt to diminish the loss to Shelly's equity even though his contributions to her separate property would gain him nothing in equity. This would also insure that the community would continue to have the use and enjoyment of the home. Despite his choice to minimize the loss to Shelley the decision of the courts has forced him not only to minimize the losses Shelley sustained to her separate property but has allowed her to invade his separate property which is also decreasing in value. The extent to which this has occurred is not fair and equitable and not in the discretion of the trial court as being so.

F. CONCLUSION.

The Supreme Court should accept review for the reasons set out in Part E and remand the matter to the Superior Court and modify the decree as to the division of property indicating the trial court abused its discretion in its original award. The court should also award attorneys fees to appellants