A. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT 

Shelley Midkiff, by and through her attorneys of record, 

respectfully requests this Court deny review ofthe January 21, 2014, 

unpublished Court of Appeals Division I opinion in Midkifj'v. Midkiff; No. 

69031-1-1 slip. op. (filed Jan. 2 I, 20 I 4). This decision upheld the Trial 

Court's division of property when dissolving the parties' marriage. 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Court of Appeals, Division I, decision entered January 21, 2014 

and decision denying Motion for Reconsideration entered on February 18, 

2014. 

C. ANSWERS TO ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. The decision of the Court of Appeals is not in conflict with a decision 
of the Supreme Court. 

2. The decision of the Court of Appeals is not in conflict with a decision 
of another decision of the Court of Appeals. 

3. The decision of the Court of Appeals does not involve a significant 
question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of 
the United States. 

4. The decision ofthe Comt of Appeals does not involve an issue of 
substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme 
Court. 

1 



J). STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This case arises from a dissolution proceeding where after a trial 

on the merits, both parties were awarded an equal share in the equity 

remaining in the parties' two homes, their marital home, which was 

purchased by using a down payment of the wife's separate property 

contribution of $195,000, and the husband's premarital home, which was 

retained during marriage as an investment property. CP at 39, RP at 25. 

The trial court awarded the wife one hundred percent of the 

remaining equity in the marital home which was estimated to be 

$86,500.00 and which had greatly depreciated in value from her original 

separate property investment. CP at 39. The total equity in the husband's 

home was $240,000. !d. The trial court awarded the husband possession 

and ownership of his home, and ordered an equalizing payment to the wife 

from the husband in the amount of$81,200.00. CP at 39. 

The trial considered the short duration of the marriage and that 

each party entered the marriage with one significant premarital property 

asset. Midkiffv. Midkiff, No. 69031-1-I, slip. op. at 3 (Jan. 21, 2014), CP at 

39. The parties had agreed to sell the Wife's premarital home and the 

funds were used to purchase the marital home. RP at 24. The patties 

agreed to keep the Husband's premarital home and maintain it as a rental 

and investment property. RP at 24. In determining what a fair and 
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equitable distribution of the property would be, the trial court determined 

that an equal division of the remaining net equity in the two remaining 

homes was necessary. CP at 39. Distributing only the equity in the marital 

home would leave the parties in disparate positions, with Steven Midkiff 

retaining $240,000 in equity on his premarital home while Shelley Midkiff 

would receive approximately only $54,500.00. Midk(fj'at 3, quoting CP at 

39. 

It was a consideration that Steven had also enjoyed use of the 

marital home for his business, and would have "benefitted unduly from the 

parties joint decision to sell Wife's home and keep Husband's home for 

the benefit of the community" ld., quoting CP at 39. Thus, the trial court 

awarded Shelley $66,300.00, the anticipated proceeds from the sale of the 

marital home, and further ordered Steven to make a transfer payment of 

$81,200.00, which was to be secured by a lien on his separate real 

property./d. At 4, quoting CP at 39. 

After the trial court denied Steven's motion for reconsideration, he 

sought review by the Court of Appeals Division II. The Court of Appeals 

upheld the trial court's decision, finding that based upon the record, the 

trial court's order reflected its consideration of all the parties' property, the 

duration of the marriage, and the economic circumstances. Midkiff at 7. 

The Court of Appeals found that the trial court did not abuse its discretion 
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in determining that a compensating transfer payment was appropriate nor 

in making that payment a lien on Steven's separate property. ld. At 6. 

Petitioner moved for reconsideration of the Court of Appeals 

ruling. This motion was denied, and he filed the instant Petition for 

Review. 

E. ARGUMENT 

This Comt Should Deny the Petition for Review, as Petitioner Fails to 
Meet the Standards of Review as Set Forth in Rule of Appellate Procedure 

13.4(b). 

RAP 13.4(b) provides that the Supreme Court will accept a petition for 
review only: 

(1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a 
decision of the Supreme Comt; or 

(2) If the decision of the Comt of Appeals is in conflict with a 
decision of another division of the Court of Appeals; or 

(3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the 
State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or 

( 4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest 
that should be determined by the Supreme Court. 

It is unclear from the Petition for Review under which of the four 

conditions outlined under RAP 13.4(b) Petitioner seeks review. It seems as 

though Petitioner has focused his arguments on sections ( 1) and (2) of RAP 
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13.4(b ). However, for the reasons set forth herein, the Petitioner does not 

satisfy the standards for review under any section of RAP 13 .4(b ). 

1. The Court ofAppeals Decision is Consistent with the Supreme Court's 

Prior Rulings. 

2. The Court ofAppeals Decision is Consistent with prior Court of 

Appeals Rulings. 

The reviewing comi's role is to simply determine whether substantial 

evidence supports the findings of fact and if so, whether those findings in 

turn support the trial court's conclusions of law. In ReMarriage of 

Greene, 97 Wn.App. 708, 989 P .2d 144 (1999). A court should not 

"substitute [its] judgment for the trial court's, weigh the evidence, or 

adjudge witness credibility." /d. At 714 (citing In reMarriage <~lRich, 80 

Wn.App. 252, 907 P .2d 1234 ( 1996). The higher courts will seldom 

modify a trial court's division of property and assets on appeal. In re 

Marriage of Muhammad, 153 Wn.2d 795,808, 108 P.3d 779 (2005). The 

party who challenges such a decision bears a heavy burden to show that 

there was a manifest abuse of discretion. !d. at 808. A trial court abuses its 

discretion only if its discretion is outside the range of acceptable choices 

or based upon untenable grounds or untenable reasons. In re Marriage of 

Littlefield, 133 Wn.2d 39, 47, 940 P.2d 1362 (1997). 
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The Supreme Court, regardless of whether it tends to "incidentally 

agree or disagree with the trial court", will not substitute its judgment for 

that of the trial comt in a dissolution proceeding with respect to questions 

concerning prope1ty division unless the Court is persuaded that the lower 

court has manifestly abused its broad discretion. Thoren v. Thoren, 73 

Wash.2d 671, 672, 440 P.2d 182 (1968). Here, the appellate comi properly 

found that the trial court had correctly applied existing case and statutory 

law to ensure that the distribution of prope1ty and liabilities was fair and 

equitable. Midk(ff at 7. 

All property is before the comt for a just and equitable distribution 

of the parties' assets and liabilities, whether community or separate. RCW 

26.09.080. See also Farmer v. Farmer, 172 Wn.2d 616, 625, 259 P.3d 256 

(20 11 ). In making a disposition of the property, "the court shall, without 

regard to misconduct, make such disposition of the property and liabilities 

of the parties, either community or separate, as shall appear just and 

equitable after considering all relevant factors including, but not limited to 

(I) the nature and extent of the community property, (2) the nature and 

extent of the separate property, (3) the duration of the marriage or 

domestic partnership, and ( 4) the economic circumstances of each spouse 

or domestic partner at the time the division of property is to become 

effective[ ... ]." See, e.g., In reMarriage of Rockwell, 141 Wn.App. 235, 
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242, 170 P.3d 572 (Wash.App. Div. 1 2007), quoting RCW 26.09.080. 

A just and equitable division of assets and liabilities "does not 

require mathematical precision, but rather fairness, based upon a 

consideration of all the circumstances of the marriage, both past and 

present, and an evaluation ofthe future needs ofpa1ties." In reMarriage 

ofCrosetto, 82 Wn.App 545, 556, 918 P.2d 954 (1996), emphasis added. 

Although no single factor is dispositive, the economic circumstances of 

each spouse upon dissolution is of paramount concern. In re Marriage of 

Harrington, 85 Wn.App. 613,633,935 P.2d 1357 (1997); In reMarriage 

of Olivares, 69 Wn.App. 324, 848 P .2d 1281 ( 1993 ). Further, a court may 

award the separate property of one party to the other if doing so would be 

fair and equitable. In reMarriage of White, 105 Wn. App. 545, 549, 20 

P.3d 481 (2001). 

Here, Petitioner contends that the trial court's decision to order a 

transfer payment in addition to the equity in the marital home yielded an 

inequitable property division. However, with respect to the premarital 

conditions of the parties, the evidence "clearly established that the wife 

realized more than $200,000 in net equity when she sold her Seattle home 

in 2008." Midkiff at 6. It would be vastly inequitable to then shift all the 

loss from the purchase and sale ofthe community residence to her, while 

Petitioner's separate real estate equity remains completely untouched. 
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Further, use of an equitable lien to guarantee payment from one 

spouse to another is a widely accepted remedy that is intended to protect 

one party's right to reimbursement. In reMarriage of Miracle, 101 Wn.2d 

137, 139, 675 P.2d 1229 (1984), citing In reMarriage o,/Harshman, 18 

Wash.App. 116, 567 P.2d 667 (1977), and Cross; The Community 

Property Law in Washington, 49 Wash.L.Rev. 729, 776 (1974). The trial 

court may impose an equitable lien to protect the reimbursement right 

when the circumstances require it. !d., citing Cross, 49 Wash.L.Rev. at 

776-77. 

Petitioner contends that the trial court awarded prope1ty at the 

value it had at the time of acquisition instead of separation or trial, and 

ordered him to reimburse the wife for the decrease in value over the period 

of their marriage, their separation, and after the decree. See Petition for 

Review at 5. This contention is incorrect and contrary to the record. In 

fact, the trial court used the current market value of both prope1ties in 

making its decision. CP at 39. 

The trial court in this case took into account the loss of value in the 

real property assets in making a determination of what would be a fair and 

equitable distribution, considering not only the premarital position of the 

parties as this was a very shmt marriage, but also the position in which the 

decree would leave both parties. While it is true that the court determined 
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and discussed the cunent value on the Respondent's initial investment, its 

decision was based entirely on the actual equity in both remaining 

properties. CP at 39. 

Petitioner points to Lucker v. Lucker to supp011 his position that the 

case at hand is somehow at odds with prior rulings of the higher courts. 

This contention simply does not make sense in light of the record. In 

Lucker v. Lucker, this Court found that the formula employed by the trial 

court considered only the value at the time of trial and ignored 

depreciation during the seven-year period in which the parties had been 

separated. Lucker v. Lucker, 71 Wn.2d 165, 167,426 P.2d 981 (1967). The 

Supreme Com1 stated that appreciation as well as depreciation should be 

considered in making an equitable division ofproperty.Jd. at 168. 

Here, the trial court did, in fact, consider the value of the properties 

at the time of acquisition and the time oftrial, and adjusted the award of 

property to each party for depreciation accordingly. CP at 39. The 

decisions of the trial and appellate court are in line with the principles 

outlined in Lucker. 

Petitioner contends that the court ignored the characterization of 

assets as separate or community in contravention of case law and statutes. 

This argument is without merit when considered in light of relevant 
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precedent. Here, the trial court found the funds used to purchase the 

marital home were the wife's separate property. CP at 39. 

"The character of property as community or separate is determined 

as of the date of acquisition." In reMarriage of Janovich, 30 Wn.App. 

169, 632 P.2d 889 (1981 ). Once the character of a separate asset is 

established, it retains it separate character unless change by deed, 

agreement of the patiies, operation of Jaw, or some other direct and 

positive evidence to the contrary.In reMarriage ofSkarbeck, 100 

Wn.App. 444, 447, 997 P.2d 447 (2000). Further, the Supreme Court held 

that property acquired during the marriage has the same character as the 

funds that were used to purchase it. In re Marriage ofChumbley, 150 

Wn.2d 1, 6, 74 P.3d 129 (2003). 

Applying these standards to the present case, it is clear the real 

property at issue was properly characterized by the trial court. The court 

found the parties agreed that they would sell the wife's premarital home 

and use the proceeds from that sale to purchase a marital home. CP at 39. 

The court further found the wife had clearly traced her separate property 

contribution to the marital real property. CP at 39. 

Even if the nature ofthe prope11y is mischaracterized, this is not 

grounds for setting aside the trial court's allocation of liabilities and assets, 

so long as the distribution is fair and equitable. In re Marriage of Brady, 
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50 Wash.App. 728, 731, 750 P.2d 654 (1988). This Comt has held that it 

"will not single out a particular factor, such as the character of the 

property, and require as a matter of law that it be given greater weight than 

other relevant factors." In reMarriage o,f'Konzen, 103 Wn.2d 470, 478, 

693 P .2d 97 ( 1985). This Court found that "the statute directs the trial 

court to weigh all of the factors, within the context of the particular 

circumstances of the parties, to come to a fair, just and equitable division 

ofprope1ty." Jd. at 478. 

In Marriage (~{Worthington, the Supreme Court ruled that even 

though the trial court may have not properly characterized the property in 

dispute, the comt's approach was correct in light ofthe facts of the case 

and Washington statute. The Court emphasized the necessity of a just and 

equitable division of property, and the law which provides that all property 

of the patties, whether separate or community, is subject to the jurisdiction 

of the court. In reMarriage o.fWorthington, 73 Wn.2d 759,440 P.2d 478 

( 1998). 

Applying these standards to the present case, it is apparent the 

appellate court was correct in upholding the trial court's characterization 

and distribution of the parties' community and separate property. The trial 

court engaged in a thoughtful analysis of the particular facts of the case. 

CP at 39. The trial coutt noted that only providing the wife the remaining 
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equity in the marital home would leave the husband with an equity in his 

pre-marital residence of $230,000, after he had benefitted from the use and 

enjoyment of the marital residence as both his home and office during the 

marriage, as well as while this case was pending. CP at 39. The husband 

would have benefitted unduly from the parties' decision to sell the wife's 

premarital home and keep his premarital home. CP at 39. 

Pursuant to the findings of fact entered by the trial court, not only 

were all assets and debts characterized, they were properly characterized. 

The trial court found, and the Court of Appeals agreed, that it was a fair 

and equitable decision in light of all the relevant circumstances and the 

particular facts of this case that the parties should equally divide the equity 

in both remaining properties. CP at 39, Midk{[(at 7. 

3. This case does not involve a significant question under the Constitution 

of the State (if Washington or ofthe United States. 

Petitioner makes no allegation this matter involves any significant 

question under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the 

United States, and as such, Petitioner has no basis for review of this case 

under section of RAP 13.4(b)(3). 
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4. This case involves no issue of substantial public interest that has not 

been adequately addressed by the Supreme Court. 

There is no legal issue of substantial public interest requiring 

Supreme Court review in this case. It appears that Petitioner is claiming 

because there is no case exactly like this one, there is no authority for the 

court to follow and so the trial court's decision and the subsequent Court 

of Appeals decision must have been in error, or that this case somehow 

takes on more impm1ance. This argument is without basis in fact or law. 

Although there may not be a case that mirrors the exact facts of the case at 

hand, this in and of itself does not mean that the precedent set by the 

higher courts is insufficient or inadequate to guide the lower courts in 

determining what is fair and equitable when distributing property and 

debts in a dissolution proceeding. There are numerous higher com1 cases 

which address the division of property and debts in a dissolution. There 

are even numerous higher court cases that address the division of real 

property. 

Petitioner consistently argues genuine issues of material fact to this 

Court. It is not the duty of the Court of Appeals or the Supreme Court to 

re-decide every decision ofthe tTial court. Miles v. Miles, 128 Wn. App. 

64, 70, 114 P.3d 671 (2005). The trial court is in the best position to view 

all evidence, testimony, and exhibits before it and make an adequate 
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determination of the facts in its findings. In re Sego, 82 Wash.2d 736, 640, 

513 P .2d 831 (1973 ). Only when there is a complete absence of findings 

or a clear and obvious manifest abuse of discretion on the part of the trial 

court in making conclusions of law based upon those findings, will or 

should the higher courts remand for re-determination. In re Miles at 69. 

In this case, the record clearly supports the findings of fact and 

rulings of the trial court, as well as the decision of the Court of Appeals to 

uphold the trial court's determinations. The existing legal framework in 

regard to property distribution in a dissolution is more than adequate to 

provide clear guidance and discretion to the trier of fact. 

There is no basis for this Court to carve out a new set of rules that 

apply only in the narrowest of circumstances and create exceptions to 

longstanding laws where none existed and should not exist, as this would 

create uncertainty for trial courts and impede upon the broad discretion 

that has been afforded to them as a matter of necessity. 

F. CONCLUSION 

The trial court heard and reviewed the evidence, considered the 

financial circumstances of the parties, and made a fair and equitable 

division of the property. The burden rests on Petitioner to prove to this 

Court that his Petition for Review falls within the provisions of RAP 
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13.4(b). He has failed to do so. Respondent respectfully requests this 

Court DENY Petitioner's Petition for Review.